1956

Lloyd D. Sutton et al v. Nick Marvidikis et al : Brief of Defendants and Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On or about February 10, 1956, the coal mining property involved herein was operated by Walter Odendahl and Theron Odendahl, his son, under the firm name and style of Star Point Coal Company (96-97). Said company had only eight employees, including plaintiffs Harvey L. Randall, Gale V. Barney, and Paul Annella (180). About said date, representatives of the employees contacted defendant Frank Sacco, then Vice President of District 22, United Mine Workers of America (177, 178) relative to forming a local union of said mine workers at said mine to improve wages, hours, and working conditions thereat, and for other benefits. Thereafter all said employees, including said three plaintiffs met with the said Sacco and Malio Pecorelli, international board member of said union, and voted unanimously to join said union, signed membership application blanks for said purpose, and written authorization for payroll deductions of initiation fees and dues (180, 181). Defendant Pecorelli communicated to said Walter Odendahl, the actions of said employees (186). Odendahl later told the said employees there would not be any jobs for them if they joined the United Mine Workers; that he would shut the mine down (269). Pecorelli had suggested to Odendahl that he continue operating the mine pending negotiations for a union contract (186). He refused. He did not want them to come to work if they were going to belong to this union (255).

There is evidence that he coerced three employees into terminating their employment (199) and declined

a written invitation to meet with the representatives of said Union to bargain collectively for an employment contract (147). The Odendahls subsequently completely shut down said mine rather than to have the same unionized.

On or about February 21, 1956, while said mine was so shut down, plaintiffs Randall, Barney and Annella, three of the eight employees who voted to join said union, and plaintiff Sutton, obtained a lease of said mining property from the Odendahls (96, 97) (149), and thereafter entered into a so-called partnership among themselves. (Ex. D). Substantial financial benefits were retained in said lease by the Odendahls (Ex. B). The question arises as to whether said lease was bona fide or sham. It appears to defendants to be merely an attempt to circumvent and evade the issues involved in said labor dispute, and to deny to the remaining five employees of Mr. Odendahl their rights under Section 7 of the Taft-Hartley Act, and Sec. 34-1-7, U.C.A. 1953, and to deprive them of their jobs merely because they sought to organize a union at said mine, as well as to deny them the right to work under the provisions of the Utah Right To Work Act simply because of union activities. The said three former employees, who are now plaintiffs, contributed none of the property used in the partnership business and are allowed to withdraw the sum of about \$22.00 per day which is the equivalent of the prevailing wage being paid to coal miners in Carbon County (133). All of the plaintiffs well knew of said labor dispute involved at said mine at the time said lease was made and

entered into, and had full knowledge and notice that the same was unresolved at said time. In fact, all of the plaintiffs, except Mr. Sutton, by voting to join the union, precipitated said labor dispute which continued under the new owners, to-wit: the plaintiffs.

After the plaintiffs leased the said mine from the Odendahls as aforesaid, they did not attempt to contact the defendants to settle said labor dispute. It was at defendants' solicitation that Sutton, Sacco, and Pecorelli met. Very little took place at this first meeting (110). Mr. Sutton made no proposals. The second and last meeting was held also at the suggestion of the defendants. One of the plaintiffs was absent therefrom (115). The same was very brief. Plaintiffs asked what the Union's proposal was with respect to settlement of the labor dispute, and the defendants replied in substance that defendants wanted the usual union contract which was in force with nearly all of the coal operators in Carbon County and that said contract should embody terms of seniority of employment (114, 116). The meeting was friendly. There was no suggestion by anyone that plaintiffs should not operate their mine pending negotiations for contract. Plaintiffs requested additional time to consider defendants' proposal and to confer with the absent partner. The plaintiffs did not at said time make any counter proposal or engage in any detailed discussion, made no effort to compromise the differences between the parties, and the very next day after the last meeting (March 1) plaintiffs caused the trial court's temporary restraining order to be served upon the defendants (14, 15). Said restraining order was granted

ex parte without hearing any evidence thereon by the trial court and without compliance with any of the other terms and conditions set forth in Sec. 34-1-28 U.C.A. 1953. The five employees were never permitted to return to their jobs.

Moreover, the plaintiffs pursued the same anti-union policies as their immediate predecessors toward said employees. It is defendants' position that by taking over said mine while there was an unresolved labor dispute thereat, of which they had full knowledge and by pursuing the same anti-union policies toward said five employees as their predecessors, plaintiffs thereby assumed and accepted said labor dispute. See *National Labor Relations Board v. New Madrid Manufacturing Co.*, 215 F. 2nd 908; *Regal Knitwear Co. v. N.L.R.B.* 324 U.S. 9, 65 S. Ct. 478; *N.L.R.B. v. Atkins*, 67 S. Ct. 1265, 331 U.S. 398.

Since said restraining order was granted, plaintiffs have made no effort whatsoever to settle said labor dispute. Plaintiffs have been working said mine since March 1, 1956 under the protection of said temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction and permanent injunction, all of which enjoined all picketing, making no distinction between peaceful or violent picketing (12, 32, 75). The restraining order was granted upon a bond of \$1,000 (12) and the preliminary injunction upon a bond of \$2,000 (32) both of which are grossly inadequate. Defendants contend that there is a labor dispute existing in this case pursuant to Sec. 34-1-34, U.C.A. 1953, and within the definitions contained therein. Said picketing

had commenced on or about February 23, 1956 insofar as the same affected the plaintiffs, and continued to the date of the service of said restraining order on March 1, 1956 (229), (14, 15).

The evidence shows that said picketing was established and maintained by defendants Faye Olsen and Claron Golding, two of the original eight employees at said mine (271). They were joined in this picketing by persons sympathetic to them (191). Picketing was for the purpose of protecting the jobs of the remaining five employees who continued their efforts to unionize the mine and exercise their rights under Sec. 7 of the Taft-Hartley Act, and Sec. 34-1-7, U.C.A. 1953 (227). The picketing was not violent (235) and occurred on a public highway about seven miles from plaintiffs' mine (92). Said picketing constituted an exercise of defendants' federal and state constitutional rights of free speech and was for the purpose of acquainting the public and all people who traveled along said highway that there was a labor dispute in existence at said mine, the facts and circumstances relative thereto, the issues involved and defendants' position in regard thereto, all in peaceful, orderly and lawful manner. Another objective of the pickets was to attempt to cause plaintiffs to reconsider the action of the three employees who abandoned their fellow employees in the midst of their efforts to secure the benefits of union organization at said mine, in direct violation of the agreement among the eight employees (227) and thus protect the jobs of the remaining five employees who had lost their jobs by reason of union activity.

Defendants' position is that the said picketing was for lawful purposes. Even in the absence of an employer-employee relationship or labor dispute, peaceful picketing for union purposes has been held lawful. See *Cafeteria Employees Union v. Angelos*, 320 U.S. 293, 64 S. Ct. 126, 88 L. Ed. 58; *Dummermuth v. Hykes*, 95 N.E. 2nd 32; *Journeyman Tailors' Union v. Miller's*, 312 U.S. 658, 61 S. Ct. 732, 85 L. Ed. 1106; *AFL v. Swing*, 312 U.S. 321, 61 S. Ct. 568, 85 L. Ed. 855; *Milk Wagon Drivers v. Meadowmoor Dairies*, 312 U.S. 287, 61 S. Ct. 552, 85 L. Ed. 836; *Bakery & Pastry Drivers' Local v. Wohl*, 315 U.S. 769, 62 S. Ct. 816, 86 L. Ed. 1178.

There is ample evidence supporting the position of the defendants that no one was compelled to stop on said highway and the traffic thereon was not blocked or impeded by said pickets and the latter did not interfere with anyone who wished to travel said highway (234); that said pickets did not intimidate, threaten or coerce in any manner, anyone who was traveling from said mine or otherwise (234). The evidence is also to the effect that plaintiffs were permitted to go through the picket line and were never compelled to turn back (234-5). Plaintiffs, however, did not cross the picket line on occasions because they did not choose to do so or due to apprehension on their part as to what might happen and not by reason of any conduct or acts on the part of the pickets (123).

There is no evidence that the pickets at any time carried or concealed any weapons of any nature (120) or that they stopped anyone from hauling coal from said

mine at any time. The said picketing took place for about 21½ hours from February 23, 1956 to March 1, 1956, a total period of six days (284). There is evidence that the pickets were at the side of the road and not on the highway and that they hailed passing motorists but did not compel any motorist to stop; that they engaged in peaceful and friendly conversation with those who did stop (273).

The evidence further supports the proposition that defendants Pecorelli and Sacco did not order, direct nor control in any manner the said persons engaged in said picketing, and did not aid nor abet nor ratify the same. The evidence does show, however, that those who established and maintained the picket line did from time to time seek information and advice from said two defendants (272), and in the course thereof defendants Pecorelli and Sacco cautioned representatives of the pickets that all picketing must be peaceful and orderly and there must be no violence, intimidation, threats or similar conduct, and that such precautionary measures are given to all members of the defendant Mine Workers who are engaged in picketing, regardless of whether the organization itself or individual members thereof established the picket line. It is given out of abundance of caution, generally.

The main issue in this case is whether or not the trial court had jurisdiction under the facts and circumstances herein to issue its permanent injunction and that even if such jurisdiction is assumed, whether or not the law and evidence herein warranted the granting thereof.

The said court's findings and permanent injunction indicate that the court believed and accepted all of the testimony of plaintiffs' witnesses, but that it arbitrarily rejected the testimony of defendants and their witnesses. It is very unusual for the truth to be all on one side and for the opposite side to be entirely unworthy of belief. The trial court was in error in issuing its permanent injunction herein for the reasons hereinabove and hereafter stated.

STATEMENT OF POINTS ON APPEAL

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT HAVE JURISDICTION TO ISSUE AN INJUNCTION IN THIS CASE UNDER FEDERAL LAW.

POINT II

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT HAVE JURISDICTION TO ISSUE ITS PERMANENT INJUNCTION HEREIN UNDER STATE STATUTES.

POINT III

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ENJOINING THE PICKETING HEREIN FOR THE REASON THAT THE SAME WAS NOT VIOLENT, BUT PEACEFUL AND FOR A LAWFUL PURPOSE.

POINT IV

PEACEFUL PICKETING IS THE LEGITIMATE EXERCISE OF FREE SPEECH, NOTWITHSTANDING THE PURPOSE THEREOF IS TO INDUCE PLAINTIFFS WHO OPERATE WITHOUT OUTSIDE HELP TO JOIN UNION.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT HAVE JURISDICTION TO ISSUE AN INJUNCTION IN THIS CASE UNDER FEDERAL LAW.

The U.S. Supreme Court has declared that with respect to conduct proscribed under the Taft-Hartley Act, this area is exclusively reserved to the Federal Board, in the first instance, and thereafter to the Federal Courts, and by reason thereof the area is closed to the States. See *Plankinton Packing Co. v. Wisconsin Employment Relations Board*, 338 U.S. 953, 70 S. Ct. 491 (1950), where the Court held in a per curiam opinion that proscriptions of the Wisconsin Labor Relations statute of the same tenor as those in the Taft-Hartley Act could not be enforced with reference to an employer over which the National Labor Relations Board customarily exercises jurisdiction.

The same principle thus enunciated with reference to employer unfair labor practices was carried over to union unfair labor practices in *Garner v. Teamsters Union*, 346 U.S. 485, 74 S. Ct. 161 (1953).

In the Garner case, *supra*, a labor union peacefully picketed the premises of an interstate trucking company in Pennsylvania. The picketing allegedly had for its purpose the unionization of the company's employees. There was no controversy, labor dispute or strike in progress, and the company had not objected to their employees joining the union. The employer brought the suit. The

State Court enjoined the picketing as being in violation of the state labor relations act. The State Supreme Court on appeal, although finding that the object of the picketing was to force the employer to coerce its employees to join the union, concluded that the "grievance fell within the jurisdiction of the National Labor Relations Board to prevent unfair labor practices" and therefore state remedies were precluded (373 Pa. 19, 94 A. 2d 893). The U.S. Supreme Court upheld the State Supreme Court, stating:

"Congress has taken in hand this particular type of controversy where it affects interstate commerce. In language almost identical to parts of the Pennsylvania statute, it has forbidden labor unions to exert certain types of coercion on employees through the medium of the employer (citing 8 (b) 2 and 8 (a) (3), Taft-Hartley Act (346 U.S. at 488). Congress did not merely lay down a substantive rule of law to be enforced by any tribunal competent to apply law generally to the parties.***Congress evidently considered that centralized administration of specially designed procedures was necessary to obtain uniform application of its substantive rules and to avoid these diversities and conflicts likely to result from a variety of local procedures and attitudes toward labor controversies."

Therefore, the Supreme Court has held that although state regulation would merely duplicate federal regulation, it would constitute a source of conflict and diversity arising out of different procedures and attitudes. Although the conduct in question may be fitted into the category of an unfair labor practice, the State action

is not automatically precluded if the unfair labor practice may constitute conduct historically subject to state regulation and control.

Activities protected by the Taft-Hartley Act are contained in Sec. 7 of the Act, and fall outside the area over which the State has authority to act. The U.S. Supreme Court, in *Weber v. Anheuser-Busch, Inc.*, 348 U.S. 468, resting on the pre-emption postulate of the pre-Taft-Hartley decision in *Hill v. Florida*, 325 U.S. 538 (1945), has declared that a State may not prohibit or condition the exercise of rights which the federal act protects.

In *Hill v. Florida*, the state enjoined a labor union from functioning until it had complied with certain statutory requirements. The injunction was invalidated on the ground that the Wagner Act included a federally established right to collective bargaining with which the injunction conflicted. In *Bus Employees v. Wisconsin Board*, 340 U.S. 383 (1951), and *Automobile Workers v. O'Brien*, 339 U.S. 454 (1950), the Court invalidated state statutory strike procedures on this same general ground. The activities in said cases were held to be in conflict with, and a denial of, rights guaranteed under Sec. 7 of the Taft-Hartley Act.

The N.L.R.B. has found the following to constitute unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section 8 (b) (1) (A) of the Taft-Hartley Act: mass picketing, obstruction of streets and highways so as to prevent ingress to or egress from a plant, (*Sunset Line and Twine Co.*, 79 N.L.R.B. 487, *Smith Mfg. Co.*, 81 N.L.R.B. 886, *Colonial Hardwood Flooring Co.*, 84 N.L.R.B. 563, *Irwin*

Lyons Lumber Co., 57 N.L.R.B. 54). It will be noted that the court in its Findings in the case at bar has found that the picketing involved herein allegedly blocked the highway leading to the mine of the plaintiffs (69). Since the federal board has found that this constitutes an unfair labor practice under the Taft-Hartley Act in the cases cited immediately above, the same would preclude the trial court from awarding an injunction with respect to said conduct. In *United Construction Workers v. Laburnum Construction Corp.*, 347 U.S. 656 (1954), the Supreme Court "assumed" that the Union's use of threats of violence on a picket line to make employees join the union was a violation of Section 8 (b) (1) (A) of the Taft-Hartley Act.

In the case at bar if this Court finds that the picketing involved herein was violent, then the same would be a violation of Sec. 8 (b) (1) (A) of the Taft-Hartley Act and the trial court had no jurisdiction thereof.

In *Garner v. Teamsters Union*, supra, the U.S. Supreme Court expressed itself on pre-emption by saying that duplicatory state procedures would be stricken down, and then stated:

"The detailed prescription of a procedure for restraint of specified types of picketing would seem to imply that other picketing is to be free of other methods and sources of restraint. For the policy of the National Labor Management Relations Act is not to condemn all picketing but only that ascertained by its prescribed processes to fall within its prohibitions. Otherwise it is implicit in the act that the public interest is served by freedom of labor to use the weapon of picketing.

For a state to impinge on the area of labor combat designed to be free is quite as much an obstruction of federal policy as if the state were to declare picketing free for purposes or by methods which the federal Act prohibits." 346 U.S. at 499-500.

The Court also said:

"A state may not enjoin under its own labor statute conduct which has been made an unfair labor practice under Federal statutes."

In *Weber v. Anheuser-Busch, Inc.*, 348 U.S. 468, 481, the Supreme Court divides the field of pre-emption into two areas: proscribed and protected conduct. The Court concludes:

"*** where the conduct if not prohibited by the federal Act, may be reasonably deemed to come within the protection afforded by that Act, the state court must decline jurisdiction in deference to the tribunal which Congress has selected for determining such issues in the first instance."

The Court further held the pre-emption doctrine applies even where picketing violated the anti-trust law of Missouri. (This was in direct conflict with *Giboney v. Empire Storage & Ice Co.* (1949), 336 U.S. 490, 93 L. Ed. 834, 69 S. Ct. 684). The Court disposed of *Giboney* and all prior decisions limiting organizational picketing by saying:

"The Missouri court relied upon *Giboney* *** for the proposition that a State Court retains jurisdiction over this type of suit. But *Giboney* was concerned solely with whether the state's injunction against picketing violated the Fourteenth Amendment. No question of federal pre-emption

was before the court; accordingly it was not dealt with in the opinion."

The U.S. Supreme Court in *Capital Service, Inc. v. N.L.R.B.*, 347 U.S. 501, held the Labor Board could obtain injunctive relief from federal courts to prevent enforcement of state court's injunction barring picketing in a dispute involving unfair labor practices under the Taft-Hartley Act.

Since the five employees in the case at bar were exercising rights guaranteed to them under Sec. 7 of the Taft-Hartley Act, (F.C.A. Title 29, Sec. 156) to-wit: The right to self-organization to form, join or assist the labor organization involved herein and to bargain collectively through representatives of their own choosing and to engage in other concerted activities for the purpose of collective bargaining or other mutual aid or protection, and said rights under the federal decisions above cited are protected activities; they are activities under the exclusive jurisdiction of the N.L.R.B., and state action to enjoin said activities is precluded by the federal Act, unless the picketing is violent. The defendants contend that said picketing was not violent and is, therefore, a protected activity under said Taft-Hartley Act. For this reason the trial court had no right to enjoin the same.

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