1957

Lloyd D. Sutton et al v. Nick Marvidikis et al : Brief of Plaintiffs and Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

Point I

THE TRIAL COURT HAD JURISDICTION TO ISSUE AN INJUNCTION IN THIS CASE REGARDLESS OF THE FEDERAL LAW.

A state court has jurisdiction in labor cases involving interstate commerce, notwithstanding the provisions of the Federal Labor Relations Management Act (hereinafter referred to as L.M.R.A.) when either of the following situations prevail:

(1) Whenever the picketing or labor dispute involves or results in violation of local matters of public safety and

order such as violence, threats, blocking of highways or violation of declared public policy; or

(2) Whenever the National Labor Relations Board (hereinafter referred to as N.L.R.B.) under its "yardstick" jurisdiction promulgation of 1954 refuses to take jurisdiction.

The law supporting situation (1) is well established. State jurisdiction has always existed in cases involving threats ,obstructing highways and local matters of public safety and order, such as was found in the instant case enmeshed with coercion, violence, and the violation of the declared public policy of the State of Utah as expressed by its legislature in the Utah Right to Work Law. The law was reaffirmed as recently as June 4, 1956 by the United States Supreme Court in **United Automobile, Aircraft and Agricultural Implement Workers vs. Wisconsin Employment Relations Board** 351 U. S. 266, 76 S. Ct. 794, in the following language:

There is no reason to re-examine the opinions in which this Court has dealt with problems involving federal-state jurisdiction over industrial controversies. They have been adequately summarized in *Weber vs. Anheuser-Busch, Inc.* 348 U. S. 468, 474-477, 75 S. Ct. 480, 484-486, 99 L. ed. 546. As a general matter we have held that a State may not, in the furtherance of its public policy, enjoin conduct "which has been made an 'unfair labor practice' under the federal statutes." *Id.* 348 U. S. at p. 475, 75 S. Ct. at page 485 and cases cited. But our **post-Taft-Hartley** opinions

have made it clear that this general rule does not take from the States power to prevent mass picketing, violence, and overt threats of violence. The dominant interest of the State in preventing violence and property damage cannot be questioned. It is a matter of genuine local concern. Nor should the fact that a union commits a federal unfair labor practice while engaging in violent conduct prevent States from taking steps to stop the violence.

The States are the natural guardians of the public against violence. It is the local communities that suffer most from the fear and loss occasioned by coercion and destruction.. We would not interpret an Act of Congress to leave them powerless to avert such emergencies without compelling directions to that effect.

To further emphasize the significance of this decision we quote from the dissent of Mr. Justice Douglas:

We disallowed that duplication of remedy in *Garner vs. Teamsters* etc. Union 346 U. S. 485, 74 S. Ct. 161, 98 L. Ed. 228. Today we depart from *Garner* and allow a state board to enjoin action which is subject to an unfair labor proceeding before the federal board.

The law supporting situation (2) is likewise impressive. To merely state the query is to supply the answer: Conceding federal jurisdiction to exist, if the federal government (N.L.R.B.) refuses to exercise jurisdiction in a

labor dispute shall the parties then be left to "the law of the jungle" because of alleged lack of jurisdiction by the state courts?

One of the most recent well-reasoned cases supporting the position taken with respect to point (2) is that of **Lee Mark Metal Manufacturing Company vs. Local No. 596**, 30 Labor Cases 69,968 (Pennsylvania, May 15, 1956) wherein it was held that state jurisdiction was proper in a case affecting interstate commerce where the N.L.R.B. refused to exercise its jurisdiction.

In the case now on appeal the mere fact that 40 per cent of the output of the plaintiffs' coal mine, while being operated by Mr. Odendahl, found its way into interstate commerce, does not per se compel Federal jurisdiction or the operation of the L.M.R.A., and exclude state jurisdiction. The L.M.R.A. is the only federal legislation having pertinence to the issues involved in this case, and accordingly Federal jurisdiction in this case must either find its source in that act or it does not apply at all. The burden of the L.M.R.A. is to invest the National Labor Relations Board with the administration and enforcement of the provisions of the act in cases embraced by the act. It is important to note that it is settled law that the N.L.R.B. has the right and is empowered to prescribe the conditions upon which it will entertain jurisdiction of cases. **N.L.R.B. vs. Swinerton and Walberg Company**, 202 Federal 2d 511.

Prior to 1954, the N.L.R.B. apparently accepted and rejected cases on a case-to-case basis, governing itself according to the volume and extent of interstate commerce involved, the applicability or non-applicability of the 'de minimus' doctrine, and kindred considerations. On July 1 and 15, 1954, however, the N.L.R.B., to remedy this variable pattern of operation, promulgated a series of dollar-volume standards as a 'yardstick' for determining if it would or would not invoke its jurisdiction in a given case. See: **Commerce Clearing House Labor Law Reporter** Vol 1, p. 1611, Sec. 1610. Cases which do not conform to the minimum standards of the board's 'yardstick' are not and will not be entertained or processed by the board, notwithstanding that some interstate commerce is involved. Inasmuch as the N.L.R.B. is constituted the sole agency for the administration and enforcement of the act, which, as has been previously noted, is the sole and only establishment of Federal jurisdiction in the premises such as are here concerned, the promulgation by the board of this jurisdictional 'yardstick' has created what has been called a 'penumbral area' between Federal and State jurisdiction. Thus it may be seen that the mere presence of interstate commerce does not of itself give rise to the applicability of the L.M.R.A. with the consequent envelopment of the cause by Federal jurisdiction.

Conformity with the board's jurisdictional 'yardstick' must be shown in addition to the proof of involvement of interstate commerce before the L.M.R.A. or Federal jurisdiction thereunder may be invoked. There was no such showing in this case. The only factor in the record

is that approximately 40 per cent of the output of the coal mine involved herein, under the operation of Odendahl, found its way into interstate commerce, and there is no evidence whatsoever of the necessary 'yardstick' qualifications of an actionable cause before the N.L.R.B. Evidence was offered in the case at bar to show that a charge was filed against Odendahl by some of his former employees with the N.L.R.B. (329-30), and that the N.L.R.B. refused to exercise jurisdiction inasmuch as the operations of the company involved were found predominantly local in character, and it did not appear that it would effectuate the policies of the National Labor Relations Act to exercise jurisdiction. In the **Garner and Weber** cases (**Garner v. Teamsters Union**, 346 U.S. 485, 74 S. Ct. 161 and **Weber v. Anheuser-Busch, Inc.**, 348, U. S. 468) jurisdiction was expressly predicated on the presence of a cause which was cognizable by the N.L.R.B., and in the instant matter the absence of such a cause, subject to the consideration of burden of proof, renders those cases inapplicable. It is further noted that both the Garner and Weber cases originated prior to the promulgation by the N.L.R.B. of its 'yardstick' policy.

The defendants had the burden of proof of establishing the necessary facts to disprove the jurisdiction of the trial court to act in the premises. Where one seeks to oust a state court from jurisdiction in an injunction proceeding in a labor dispute on the grounds of conflict of jurisdiction, that person assumes and must bear the burden of proving such commerce as will invoke Federal jurisdiction. The defendants in this case failed to prove that

their cause fell within the board's jurisdictional 'yardstick' and therefore their contention of conflict of jurisdiction does not have any validity. In the Garner case itself 346 U. S. at page 488 the court clearly implied that the absence of an actionable cause before the N.L.R.B. leaves a state court free to act in the premises. If the case does not fall within the jurisdictional 'yardstick' of the N.L.R.B., jurisdiction is impliedly ceded to the state court.

When the N.L.R.B. announces that it will refuse jurisdiction in certain types of cases, it states, by implication at least, that the resolution of those matters cannot be effectually had by its processes. "If then the state courts do not take jurisdiction," as stated in the case of **Ringling Brothers-Barnum & Bailey Combined Shows, Inc., vs. Lewis, et al**, New York Supreme Court, 135 N. Y. L. J. April 10, 1956, p. 7 (30 Labor Cases 69,887), "an area of employer-employee relationship reverts to the unsupervised jungle where decisions go to the strong and ruthless." See also a 1955 California Supreme Court case squarely in point: **J. S. Garmon et al vs. San Diego Building Trades Council** 291 P. 2d 1. See generally the case of **Lee Mark Metal Manufacturing Company vs. Local No. 596 International Brotherhood of Teamsters**, *supra*, and cases cited therein.

It is, therefore, submitted that neither under the pre-emption doctrine nor under the interstate commerce doctrine, was the trial court in this case without jurisdiction to issue the injunction in this case, and to the contrary state jurisdiction was proper by reason either of (1) the existence of violence, threats, and other violation of local law

existing in this case, or (2) the refusal of the N.L.R.B. to assume jurisdiction because of its jurisdictional 'yardstick' doctrine.

Point II

THE TRIAL COURT HAD JURISDICTION TO ISSUE ITS PERMANENT INJUNCTION HEREIN UNDER UTAH STATUTES.

As we understand defendants, they contend that the trial court also lacked **jurisdiction** to issue its injunction herein because of the provisions and limitations of the Utah Labor Disputes Act, Title 34, Ch. 1, UCA 1953, which is sometimes called the "Little Norris-LaGuardia Act."

Our answer to this contention is two-fold:

(1) The Utah Right to Work Law, Laws of Utah 1955, Ch. 54, Sec. 1, confers the power to issue injunctions in such cases and the Utah Labor Dispute Act, if repugnant to this later expression of our legislature on that point, is repealed by implication.

We believe this Court will not find it necessary to pass upon the constitutional question hereinafter stated because of the well established law governing the first portion of our answer now being set forth. The Utah Right to Work Law specially recognizes the right of the courts to issue injunctions in cases such as this one and while the Utah Right to Work Law does not expressly negative the application of the Utah Labor Disputes Act, it is the latest expression of the legislature, and is control-

ling as to injunctive relief under that law. If there is any conflict between the two acts, the Right to Work Law supercedes the conflicting portion of the so-called "Little Norris-LaGuardia Act." See the case of **Hanson v. International Union of Operating Engineers Local No. 406**, 79 So. 2d 199 (1955) involving the precise question and almost haec verba statutes as our two statutes above referred to:

"Where two legislative acts are repugnant to, or in conflict with, each other the last one enacted will govern, control, or prevail, and supercede and impliedly repeal the earlier act although it contains no repealing clause."

See also: 82 C.J.S. 489, Sec. 291, citing **Bullen vs. Anderson**, 81 Utah 151, 17 p. 2d 213, wherein it was held that provisions of later statutes prevail over conflicting provisions of an earlier statute.

(2) The Utah Labor Disputes Act in so far as it purports to limit or restrict the power of courts to issue injunctions is clearly an invasion by the legislature of jurisdiction conferred by the Constitution of the State of Utah upon its courts of general jurisdiction and is therefore unconstitutional.

The provisions of the co-called "Little Norris-LaGuardia Act," in so far as they seek to limit the jurisdiction of the district courts of the State of Utah in the granting of relief by injunction, if that is necessary for the protection of rights and property, and to support the declared public policy of the State of Utah as expressed in

its Right to Work Law, are illegal, ineffective and an unconstitutional assumption of power by the legislature, and an infringement upon the inherent right of the courts.

Article V, Sec. 1, Constitution of Utah provides:

“The powers of the government of the State of Utah shall be divided into three distinct departments, the Legislative, the Executive, and the Judicial; and no person charged with the exercise of the powers properly belonging to one of these departments, shall exercise any function appertaining to either of the others, except in the cases herein expressly directed or permitted.”

Article VIII, Sec. 1, Constitution of Utah provides:

“The Judicial power of the State shall be vested in the Senate sitting as a court of impeachment, in a Supreme Court, in district courts, in justices of the peace, and such other courts inferior to the Supreme Court as may be established by law.”

Article VIII, Sec. 7, Constitution of Utah provides:

“The district courts or any judge thereof, shall have power to issue writs of habeas corpus, mandamus, injunction, quo warranto, certiorari, prohibition and other writs necessary to carry into effect their orders, judgments and decrees, and to give them a general control over inferior courts and tribunals within their respective jurisdictions.”

The framers of the Constitution expressly conferred upon the courts and reserved unto them the power to is-

sue the writs mentioned in the Constitution, one of which writs is that of injunction. If they had intended that the courts should have such power as may be prescribed by law, and to issue writs of injunction as may be defined by the legislature, they would have said so. See: **State ex rel. Robinson v. Durand**, 36 Utah 93, 104 Pac. 760, where the Court said:

“ . . . If it is within the power of the legislature to enlarge the office of the writ, it must also be within its power to abridge it. If such power to enlarge and abridge exists, then the power of courts to issue the writs, and the cases to which they may apply, are wholly dependent upon the will and discretion of the legislature. In such cases the power of courts to issue the writs is as by statute provided, and not as provided by the Constitution. . . . ”

And the Court held that the legislature could not break in upon the Constitution or encroach upon the prerogative of courts, and that its enactment extending and enlarging the office of the writ of prohibition was void. The power conferred upon the courts by the Constitution cannot be enlarged or abridged by the legislature.

See **Blanchard vs. Golden Age Brewing Company** (Washington, 1936) 63 P. (2d) 397 holding under constitutional provisions practically identical with ours and Labor Disputes Act also practically identical with ours that the latter was unconstitutional in so far as it purported to limit or restrict the powers of the court of equity to issue injunctions in labor disputes:

"Thus, by constitution and independently of any legislative enactment, the judicial power over cases in equity has been vested in the courts, and, in the absence of any constitutional provisions to the contrary, such power may not be abrogated or restricted by the legislative department" page 405.

The rationale back of this line of authorities is brought in sharp relief when one considers the federal judicial structure. In the federal field the Norris-LaGuardia Act (1932) provided that:

"No court of the United States, as herein defined, shall have jurisdiction to issue any restraining order or temporary injunction in a case involving or growing out of a labor dispute except in strict conformity with the provisions of such sections."
29 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101.

But Section 113 (d) of that Act defines court of the United States as:

"The term 'court of the United States' means any court of the United States **whose jurisdiction has been or may be conferred or defined or limited by Act of Congress.**"

It is clear, as Mr. Justice Stone stated in **Lockerty vs. Phillips** 319 U. S. 238, 63 S. Ct. 1019, "The congressional power to ordain and establish inferior courts includes the power of investing them with jurisdiction either limited, concurrent or exclusive, and of withholding jurisdiction from them in the exact degrees and character which to

Congress may seem proper for the public good."

The only Court created by our United States Constitution is the Supreme Court itself. All other courts including U. S. District and Circuit Courts of Appeal are established by Congressional Act.

The District Courts of the State of Utah, unlike inferior United States courts, obtained their power to issue Injunctions from the constitution. The legislature may not restrict that power.

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